




















 

    

Pre-Bid Meeting 
  

 
Airport: South Texas International Airport at Edinburg 
 
Date: Thursday, April 27, 2017 @ 1:30 PM 
 
Project: DPS Hangar Project 
 

Organizer: Nathan Mikell 
 
KSA Project No.: EDN.024 
 
Client Project No.: TxDOT CSJ No. 16HGEDNBG 
 

 
I. Sign In Sheet 

II. Introductions and Roles 

A. Debora Melvin, Airport Manager, South Texas International Airport at Edinburg 

B. Ed Mayle, Project Manager, TxDOT Aviation 

C. Philip Huseman, Project Manager, KSA  

D.  Nathan Mikell, Senior Design Engineer, KSA 

III. Bidding Procedures 

A. See Notice to Bidders and Instructions to Bidders section in Contract Documents for bidding information. 

B. All bidders are encouraged to review all contract documents including Mandatory Federal Contract 
Provisions, TxDOT General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Specifications. 

C. Technical questions/comments should be submitted to Philip Huseman, P.E. (phuseman@ksaeng.com,  
281-494-3252) or Nathan Mikell (nmikell@ksaeng.com, 281-494-3252) by Tuesday, May 2, 2017, at 5:00 
PM. Questions must be in writing and received prior to date mentioned. 

D. For other information visit the TxDOT Aviation website or call Beverly Longfellow at 512-416-4516. 

E. Sealed bids for the construction of airport improvements at the South Texas International Airport at 
Edinburg are due to be delivered to Beverly Longfellow, TxDOT Aviation, 200 E. Riverside Drive, Austin, 
Texas 78704 on Wednesday, May 10, 2017, at 2:30 p.m.  Any bid received after closing time will be 
returned unopened.  Bids will then be taken to TxDOT Aviation Division at 150 E. Riverside Drive, Bldg. 150, 
5th Floor, South Tower, Room 107, Austin, Texas 78704 to be publicly opened and read at 2:30 p.m. 

F. Bid Proposal 

1. Bidders must utilize the bid proposal form provided on TxDOT’s website.  

2. Bidders must provide pricing for all Base Bid and Alternate items. The contract award will be based 
on the lowest qualified bid. 

G. Bidder shall reference the Aviation Division General Construction Contract Provisions. 

1. http://txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/aviation/general-provisions.html 

H. Contract will be awarded within 60 calendar days from bid opening. 

I. Federally funded project 

1. DBE Goal is 2%. Questions regarding HUB Goal and Good Faith Efforts should be directed to 
Beverly Longfellow at 512-416-4516. 

2. Wage rate requirements will be required as shown in the Contract Documents. 

3. Buy American – Steel and Manufactured Products for Construction Contracts (See Special Notice to 
Bidders). 

 

mailto:phuseman@ksaeng.com
mailto:nmikell@ksaeng.com
http://txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/aviation/general-provisions.html
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IV. Scope of Work 

A. Base Bid:  

1. Construct DPS Hangar 

2. Construct Transition Pavement, Vehicle Access, and Parking Pavement 

3. Complete Site Work 

4. Install Pavement Markings 

B. Additive Alternate No. 1: Construct Asphalt Auto Parking Lot Pavement 

C. Additive Alternate No. 2: Adjust Security Fence 

D. Additive Alternate No. 3: Reconstruct Existing DPS Hangar Driveway 

E. Additive Alternate No. 4: Installation of Emergency Generator 

F. Deductive Alternate No. 1: Interior Structural Steel Painting 

V. Site Access / Staging Areas 

A. Site Access and Staging Area 

1. There is one staging and storage area whose approximate location is shown on the phasing sheets 
in the plan set.  

VI. Safety and Phasing Plan 

A. Contractor will be required to be in compliance with FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-2F, Operational Safety 
on Airports During Construction. 

B. Contractor will prepare a Safety Plan Compliance Document that outlines how they intend to comply with 
the established Construction Safety and Phasing Plan requirements.  

C. Contractor to provide heights of construction equipment to Engineer. 

D. Phase 1 

1. Install Stabilized Construction Exit, Erosion Control Measures, Barricades and File Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Permit 

2. Construct Utilities, Septic System and Hangar 

3. Construct Apron to Hangar Transition Pavement, Vehicle Access, Concrete Parking Pad and Parking 
Pavement 

4. Complete Finish Grading, Sodding, and Seed Installation 

5. Demobilize 

VII. Other Information 

A. Contract Time 

1. 300 Calendar days for Base Bid 

2. 0 Additional Calendar days will be added to contract time if Additive Alternate No. 1, 2, 3 or 4 is  
awarded 

3. 0 Calendar days will be deducted from the contract time id Deductive Alternate No. 2 is awarded 

4. Liquidated Damages are $1,000 per calendar day 

B. RPR Office (as required per Specification KSA-100) 

C. Materials Acceptance by Owner / Materials Quality Control by Contractor 
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D. Protection of any existing utilities in the project area is the responsibility of the Contractor. Engineer has 
endeavored to show all known utilities within the Contract Documents, but this shall not relieve the 
Contractor from full responsibility in anticipating all underground obstructions, whether or not shown on 
the plans. Contractor should call for utility locates and verify locations of all utilities prior to starting 
construction. 

E. SW3P – Contractor’s Responsibility 

F. Engineer’s Construction Estimate 

1. Base Bid = $2,281,288 

2. Base Bid plus Deductive Alternate No. 1 is = $2,231,228 

3. Base Bid plus all Additive Alternates = $2,534,727  

 

Notes: 

 

  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 







 

    

Contractor 
Questions 

  
 
To: All Plan Holders 
 
Airport: South Texas International Airport at Edinburg 
 
Date: Wednesday, May 17, 2017 
 

Project: Department of Public Safety (DPS) Hangar 
 
KSA Project No.: EDN.024 
 
Client Project No.: TxDOT CSJ No. 16HGEDNBG 
 

 
 

1. Question:  Is Texas Windstorm Certification required for the metal building? If so, will it be paid for by the Owner 
      or GC? 

Response: BSG- Not Required 
 

2. Question:  HVAC System commissioning required? If so, will it be paid for by the Owner or GC? 

Response: BSG- Commissioning Not Required  
 

3. Question:  Can we e-mail just the “Bid Form” on bid day, (4/10) and hand deliver package on 4/11? 
    

Response: The only bid forms that will be accepted will be the bid forms that are sent/delivered to the address 
shown in the Notice to Bidders.  Emailed bid forms and other necessary information required by the 
contract documents will not be accepted. 

 
4. Question:  Is this a LEED project? 

    

Response: BSG- See Addendum #2 
 

5. Question:  Are ID badges and background checks required? 
    

Response: No.  
 

6. Question:  Paragraph 1.9A/01 40 00-6 states testing by Owner “where indicated”. For concrete, 3.6.B/03 30 00-8 
 states: “by Owner”. For earthwork, payment responsibility is not indicated in 31 22 13 & 31 23 16. Both 
 are typically performed by the same testing lab. Is earthwork testing also by the Owner? 

    

Response:  The Owner only provides acceptance testing.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to provide quality 
control testing.  In the event that a material acceptance test fails, the contractor will be financially 
responsible for the failed test.   

 
7. Question:  Room Finish Schedule on Sheet A2.10 is not completed. Note states: “To Be Determined”. Please 

 clarify. 
    

Response: BSG- See Addendum #2 
 

8. Question:  Reflected ceiling plan on Sheet A2.20 shows gypsum board ceilings in Rooms 111 & 112. However, Section 
3/A4.00 shows plaster. Please advise which is correct. 

    

Response:  BSG- See Addendum #2 - Plaster Ceilings in Rms. 111 &112 
 

9. Question:  Refrigerator & range on 11/A6.00 are not shown to be “by others” like the other appliances. In 6, 
      9/A6.10 they’re only shown as dashed lines. Also, there are no specs for them. Are they furnished by 
      Owner or GC? 
    

Response:  BSG- All appliances in Kitchen by Owner 
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10. Question:   Alternate #1 on the Bid Form and on Sheets 2 & 5 state asphalt parking lot and driveway. However, 
       A1.00 shows concrete. Please advise which is correct.  
    

Response:  Regarding the type of pavement to be installed, the civil drawings shall take precedence.  
 

11. Question:  The area shown on Sheet A1.00 shows the existing driveway to be asphalt. The manager said          
it’s actually made of millings, not asphalt pavement. See attached photo 06. Alternate 3 states:  
“construct asphalt pavement over existing driveway”. Since the existing driveway is not asphalt 
pavement, will any sort of subgrade preparation be required in lieu of simply placing asphalt atop of what 
may be an improperly prepared base? 

    

Response:  This pavement section is as shown on sheet 13 for the “hangar automotive parking flexible pavement 
section”. 

 
12. Question:   The area between the existing and proposed buildings has 2 notes on attached Sheet 5. Note 4 reads 
       “concrete parking pad”. Note 3 does not indicate concrete or asphalt. Is the cross-hatched area on  
       attached Sheet 5 to be asphalt or concrete? Since 4 is concrete, one could take 3 as meaning asphalt,  
       however, the manager might be expecting concrete. 

 

Response: The pavement between the existing and proposed hangar is referred to as “apron access pavement” as      
called out in item 3 shown on sheet 5, and this pavement will be asphalt pavement.  There is a concrete 
parking pad shown on sheet 5 and called out in item 4.  The “hangar/apron transitional pavement” 
referred to as item 2 is concrete pavement.   

 
13. Question:  Asphalt in the area noted as "Existing Asphalt Approach" on attached Sheet A1.00 and "North Apron" on
      attached Sheet 5 is actually being placed at this time.  There apparently is no curb being laid on the 
      side facing the proposed building, where a 5' wide concrete apron is called for.  See attached photo 05.  
      Are we to figure simply pouring concrete against the asphalt or are we to include sawcutting a straight  
      line parallel to the proposed building slab? 

    

Response:  The proposed 5’ wide concrete hangar/apron transitional pavement will be poured up against the existing 
asphalt pavement.  However, it might be necessary to sawcut the existing asphalt pavement to provide a 
straight edge.  All sawcutting is subsidiary to the item in which it is needed for.   

 
14. Question:  Will we be able to use the Owner's existing electric & water service to help reduce cost 

    

Response:  No.  
 

15. Question:  Several subcontractors have called asking if you can re-issue attached Sheet A2.10.  They cannot read the 
wording on the Product List and Room Finish Schedule. 
    

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2 - (Enlarged Schedules) 
 

16. Question:  Item #10 on Sheet A2.10 indicates corner guards are to be 4' high and paragraph 2.2.A on page 102600-
2 indicates they are to be plastic with a metal retainer.  Paragraph 2.2.A.2 indicates corner guards are to 
be 1/8" thick x 5' high stainless steel angles screwed to the walls.  Please advise as to either the locations 
or quantity of each type to prevent a potential double up. 
    

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2 
 

17. Question:  I could not find anything in the plans & specs pertaining to communications.  Is it by the Owner? 
    

Response: This will be done by the Owner.  
 

18. Question:  Are there any Allowances or Contingencies other than the $17,500 Structural Steel Allowance on Sheet 
S1.0? 
    

Response: No.  
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20. Question:  Civil drawings show an existing underground AT&T line running through the area of the proposed 
building slab.  Is this to remain in its current location? 

    

Response: Yes, unless it conflicts with the foundation depth. 
 

21.  Question: The City of Edinburg Water Department asked if the 6" water meter, for the fire sprinkler system, needs
        to fire rated.   
    

Response: No.  
 

22. Question: The City of Edinburg Water Department asked if the proposed 2" water meter box needs to be traffic 
rated like the proposed 6" meter vault and the replacement of the existing meter box. 

    

Response: The proposed 2” water meter box does not need to be traffic rated.   
 

23. Question: The City of Edinburg Water Department asked what water meter size is to be installed where the existing 
meter is to be replaced. 

    

Response: The relocated water meter shall match the size of the existing water meter.   
 

24. Question: Is the 8" concrete ramp (shown on Sheet 5) and the light pole (shown on Sheet E2.00) to be included in 
Alternate 1 or the Base Bid? 

    

Response: These items will be included in the base bid. 
 

25. Question: On Sheet S3.0, the largest footing, Type S7 which is approximately 8' x 8', is not listed on the Footing 
Schedule on Sheet S2.0.  Also, the footing at Column Line 4E is drawn as an S3 but marked S7.  It also has 
a mark indicating to use Detail 13/S2.0, which is for an exterior footing. 

    

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2  
    

26. Question: Is the building slab area located between the hangar doors and exterior edge of the slab (Column Line 
0.8) to receive Epoxy Flooring like the interior floor area of the hangar?  Being that it's a high gloss epoxy, 
it could create a slip hazard when wet or even damp. 

    

Response: BSG - No Epoxy Coating on slab at exterior side of door rails. 
 

27. Question: Footing S2 is not listed on the Footing Schedule on Sheet S2.0. 
     

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2 
 

28. Question: A ceramic tile contractor quoted spec section 2.2.A.10 on 093013-2 which states: "Color & pattern by 
Architect from manufacturer's full range."  He said tile pricing ranges from 1 to 5, with a 5 costing 
approximately 6 times what a 1 costs.  He would like to make sure you want a 5 on this type of project, 
or, do you really want something less expensive. 

    

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2 
 

29. Question: Millwork Detail 7/A6.10 shows the countertop to be solid plastic however 13/A6.10 shows stone.  Please 
advise. 

    

Response: BSG - Detail 7/A6.10: This countertop should be stone (3/4" Granite). 
    

30. Question: Building sections on Sheet A4.00 call for exposed structural steel and fire sprinkler lines to be painted.  
Deductive Alternate 1 only calls for deleting painting structural steel.  Is painting the fire sprinkler lines 
to be included in Deductive Alternate 1? 

    

Response: BSG - Deduct Alternate #1 should include the deduction for not painting structural steel and fire sprinkler 
system piping. 
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31. Question: Due to receiving bids from subcontractors and suppliers up to Bid Time, may we submit items listed in 
the Bidders Qualifications section and Hangar Qualification Statement the day after Bid Day? 

    

Response: Refer to the Notice to Bidders and 49 CFR Part 26.53. 
 

32.       Question:  What is the anticipated Notice to Proceed date? 
    

Response: After the bid opening it could take up to 60 days to get the contract executed.  Once the contracts are 
executed a pre-construction meeting will be held and a Notice to Proceed will be issued.  

 
33. Question: A metal building supplier asked if the 1A-120 requirement stated in M.1 on 133419-6 is actually required 

on this project.  He said it will increase the cost of materials & labor by approximately 20%.  He also said 
the roof purlins would need to be set at 2' on center in lieu of 5' on center and the roof panels would 
need to be 22 gage in lieu of 25 gage. 

    

Response: BSG - See Addendum #2 
 

34. Question: Building sections 1 thru 4 on A5.00 show 3" vinyl-backed insulation in the hangar area. However, sections 
3 & 4 also show an additional 6" of unfaced insulation.  Does the hangar area take 3" or 3" + 6" for a total 
of 9"? 

    

Response: BSG - Hangar area roof to be the same as the office area roof with 3" + 6" (sag-n-bag). 
    

35. Question: There are major differences in the 8" thick Site Concrete quantities from what is shown on the Bid Form 
vs. what we measured. How should we account for these differences in our pricing?     

    

Response: The concrete quantities have been verified with what is shown in the plans and the bid form.  Other than 
the concrete pad for the hangar, which is subsidiary to the hangar itself, there are three pieces of concrete 
pavement.  There is a 5’ wide concrete transition strip that ties the hangar into the apron, this can been 
seen on sheet 5.  There is a 55’ x 25’ concrete parking pad which is also shown on sheet 5.  The last piece 
of concrete pavement is the concrete ramp in the parking lot that would be used to access the vertical 
lift roll-up metal door. 

 
36. Question: Item 2.29 on the Bid Form reads: "Adjust existing septic system drain lines."  This is not shown on Sheet 

7 Site Utility Plan or any other drawing. 
    

Response: Sheet 7 shows the location of the existing septic system and septic system drain lines per the City of 
Edinburg.  In the event that the existing septic system drain lines conflict with proposed construction 
items the drain lines would have to be adjusted.  That is the purpose of this bid item. 

 
37.       Question: There are various items on the Bid Form listed under Item 2- Hangar Site Work that pertain to Alternates.  

      Are we to leave them blank?  Although items like Asphalt Pavement Striping, 8" Compacted Subgrade  
      and Clearing and Grubbing stand out, there may be other items that appear not to belong under Item 2- 
      Hangar Site Work.  Are we to leave them blank? 

    

Response: Item 2 is part of the base bid.  The contractor shall completely fill out the bid form and all items included 
in the bid form.  Hangar site work is for all work taking place outside the building footprint.   

 
38. Question: The project is being federally funded and facilitated by TxDOT, however the airport is owned by the City 

of Edinburg so who will be conducting inspections for the project? 
    

Response: The City of Edinburg will be conducting inspections for the project.  
 

39. Question: Will this project require a building permit? Who is responsible for the permit/impact fees? 
    

Response: A permit or permits will be required for this project.  The contractor is ultimately responsible for the 
permit/impact fees.  Would suggest that the appropriate entities are contacted to determine the cost of 
permits/impact fees.  
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40. Question: Specification 132000 “Sliding Hangar Doors” lists “Norco Industrial Doors” as the only manufacturer for 

the hangar doors. Will other manufacturers be acceptable if they meet the same specifications or will the 
doors be required to be supplied by Norco only? 

     

Response: Alternate manufactures from the ones that are specified would have to be submitted via a substitution 
request.  Refer to specification 012500. 

 
41. Question: Specification 133419 “Metal Building Systems” includes six (6) acceptable manufacturers for the Pre-

Engineered Steel Structure. Are these the only manufacturers that will be accepted? Would 
manufacturers that meet the same specifications such as Mesco, United Structures of America, and Kirk 
Airport Solutions, Inc. be acceptable? 

    

Response: Alternate manufactures from the ones that are specified would have to be submitted via a substitution 
request.  Refer to specification 012500. 

 
42.       Question: What are the hours of operation for the airport and is it staffed 24 hours a day, 7 days a week? 
     

Response: The Airport Terminal is typically staffed Monday-Friday from 8 AM to 5 PM.  However, DPS operations 
can occur outside of this timeframe.  The contractor does not have to restrict their construction 
operations to the hours that the Airport Terminal will be staffed. 

 
43. Question: The general conditions indicate anticipated number of work days that will be lost to rain. Are there any 

other days that should be anticipated as lost days such as holidays, etc.? 
    

Response: This contract is a calendar day contract.  Weekends, holidays and weather days are included in contract 
time. 

 
44. Question: Specification 013100 outlines the requirement for Progress Meetings however the interval for these 

meetings is not defined. At what frequency will the progress meetings be conducted? 
    

Response: The frequency of progress meetings will depend on the amount of progress made.  However, typically 
progress meetings are held once a month. 
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